WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

Chairman Rathmann called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by
Sergeant-at-Arms George Clifford.

ROLL CALL: Present -  Chairman Rathmann
Margaret Bebak
George Clifford
James Frick
Dale J McCabe
Raymond Nalewajek
Eric Sailer
Jeffrey Schieber, Code Enforcement Officer
Tina Hawthorne, Town Attorney

Absent - None

APPROVAL OF PROOFS OF PUBLICATION

Motion by Bebak, seconded by McCabe, to receive and file the proofs of publication and posting of legal notice.
Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion by Clifford, seconded by McCabe, to approve minutes 2021-01 of January 14, 2021.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

OLD BUSINESS

2020-11

A request from Jared Juliano for a home occupation permit for property located at 799 Orchard Park Road.
Motion by Clifford, seconded by McCabe, to open the public hearing.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

Code Enforcement Officer Jeffrey Schieber stated the town code has a provision for home occupation in which
properties are required to have a specific zoning, these are mostly on main thorough fares of the town.
Provisions are outlined in the town code with numerous criteria. A home occupation permit is limited to one
room of the house, this is not a daily event and no signs are allowed. In this instance, the owner is required to
have a letter from the town stating he is properly zoned and approved. Code items do not keep up with the

changing times. There are no employees, the business is in a small portion of the house, and there is ample
parking. Mr. Schieber does not see a frequency of traffic to the premises.



WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

2020-11 (continued)

Mr. Juliano stated his request is to obtain his Federal Firearm License to service himself and other locals in law
enforcement. Mr. Juliano believes he will be meeting with clients once or twice a month for purchases. Ample
parking is on site; the house is far off the street. This is strictly for a handful of local people. There will be no
website or advertising.

Mr. Schieber stated residents were notified and it was explained that there will be no stockpile of
weapons/ammunition. There will not be a shooting range and conforms with the requirements of the code. The
Planning Board will make a recommendation to the Town Board to grant final approval.

Mr. Nalewajek questioned how items will be stored. Mr. Juliano replied he will follow all ATF requirements.
There is a 64-gun safe, bolted to the ground, away from people. Mr. Juliano comes from a law enforcement
family and has been around guns growing up.

Mr. Frick asked what type of Federal Firearms License Mr. Juliano is applying for. Mr. Juliano replied he is only
at the first step of the process which is going through the town. The intention is pistols, hunting rifles and not
to get into level 3.

Mr. Nalewajek questioned how ammunition is stored. Mr. Juliano stated a room is dedicated to ammunition and
under lock and key. Guns and ammunition are kept separate.

Ms. Bebak questioned if this is order only or will there be stock available. Mr. Juliano stated there will not be an
inventory. If someone purchased a gun online, it would be sent to Mr. Juliano to await background check,
permits, etc.; after completion, the gun is transferred to the purchaser.

Motion by McCabe, seconded by Clifford, to close the public hearing.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

Motion by McCabe, seconded by Sailer, to recommend approval of a home occupation permit for property located
at 799 Orchard Park Road.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried
NEW BUSINESS
SPR2021-01

A request from Young Development Inc. for site plan approval for property located at 945 Center Road for
construction of three (3) multi-family townhouse buildings and associated site work.

Motion by Clifford, seconded by Frick, to open the public hearing.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried



WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

SPR2021-01 (continued)

Sean Hopkins of Hopkins, Sorgi & McCarthy PLLC presented on behalf of the applicant and stated the applicant
is seeking site plan approval for the previously approved and constructed Park Lane Villa project. The project
consists of 3.83 acres. The original concept plan has been modified substantially based on Planning Board input.
The Planning Board recommended approval of the rezoning and special permit subject to the following
conditions:

1. The multi-family dwelling buildings to be constructed be limited to single-story buildings.

2. The maximum allowed density shall be limited to sixteen (16) units.

3. The only permitted use of the property pursuant to R-60A(S) zoning classification shall be limited to

multifamily use.

The Town Board issued a Negative SEQRA Declaration, issued a special use permit and approved the rezoning
with the conditions at the December 7, 2020 meeting.

The changes to the site plan include the following:

= Number of units is reduced from 26 units to 16 units

= The 2 previously proposed two-story buildings with 10 units per building on the Center Road side of the
Project Site have been replaced with 2 single-story buildings consisting of 6 and 5 units.

= Location of the single-story building consistina of 6 units on the rear of the project site towards Brantwood
Drive has been changed by increasing the rear yard setback from 30’ as to a rear yard setback of slightly
more than 130’

= 46 parking spaces for 16 units - additional parking spaces added for visitors per input previously provided
by the Planning Board

Landscape Plan includes:
= 113 new trees including 9 different types
= Norway Spruce Trees along rear of both of 945 Center Road and the previously approved project at 965
Center Road
= 6’ fence along the rear of both 945 Center Road and the previously approved project at 965 Center Road
= On-site walking trail
= Small dog park area

One of the topics that did come up was the need to comply with DEC stormwater quality and quantity standards
for drainage. Engineered plans have been submitted, reviewed, and approved. Runoff from impervious surfaces
will be conveyed into the 2 on-site stormwater management areas. The on-site stormwater management system
will be designed and installed to handle a 100-year storm event. The engineer’s letter did state the following
conditions be imposed; 1) Remove catch basin inlet protections from stormwater treatment basin outlet
structures — to prevent flooding during construction 2) The applicant is made to be responsible to clean the
manhole at the discharge tie-in point of their drainage system as the plans state that the existing inverts were
not visible during the survey and are likely partially clogged.

Ms. Bebak questioned the layout of the building from the Center Road view. Pat Sheedy from Carmina Wood
Morris replied there is green space and plantings along Center Road for screening. There will be one drive path
to connect to phase one. Ms. Bebak requested a modification be considered to the back of the unit like the look
of the front.



WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

SPR2021-01 (continued)

Ms. Bebak commented on a drainage easement running through the middle of the property. Phase 2 avoids
having buildings encroach on it, yet on the map, Phase 1 is encroaching on it. The easement is on many titles
in the area and Ms. Bebak expressed concerns about drainage issues. Mr. Sheedy stated all storm drainage
design for the site and Phase 1 followed DEC and town standards and should not have a negative impact on
surrounding properties. Ms. Bebak stated encroaching on an easement may cause other issues. Mr. Hopkins
stated he will investigate further to ensure compliance.

Chairman Rathmann questioned if there was a resolution to discharging off site. Mr. Sheedy stated the catch
basin and drainage system to the west is within an existing town easement, owned and operated by the town.

Chairman Rathmann expressed concerns with additional water. Mr. Sheedy replied the site has been designed
to hold and restrict the outflow of stormwater to less than what is currently discharging from the site. The
current run off rate is less than a single residential unit discharge. The county was contacted about the storm
system and there are no issues or blockages; the county is researching the problem further. The system has
been designed that the storm systems to the west have reserve areas to collect more stormwater than required.

Ms. Bebak stated the promise was to work to alleviate some of the flooding and questioned if more has been
done. . Mr. Sheedy replied that he is still in communication with the county and awaiting their
comments/direction. Mr. Hopkins stated the stormwater management system has been over designed to help
existing conditions. The water causing the flooding in the area is caused by a large water shed. The biggest
problem with the county system is that it takes a 90-degree bend and with a reduction in pipe size causing water
to back up. The town did perform video and found no blockage. The 90-degree turn is not on this property.

Chairman Rathmann referred to the center storm water detention and questioned if this will retain water
permanently. Mr. Sheedy replied it is a wet pond with water permanently held. Along Center Road will be a dry
pond holding and storing water during rainstorms, discharging slowly into the county system.

Code Enforcement Officer Jeffrey Schieber stated there is an issue at the current development; the 2-way traffic
drive line is being blocked by resident parallel parking. The fire department has notified the town that this does
not meet fire lane requirements. The fire department is requesting fire lane signage throughout the entire
development, the fire hydrant at the rear to be located to the opposite side for better access, and hydrants
painted red. Public hydrants are yellow as opposed to privately owned. The fire department would like site plan
with building numbers and hydrant locations for their trucks. Mr. Hopkins assured Mr. Schieber signage will be
placed for fire lanes.

Chairman Rathmann suggested moving the dog park to the west to provide a single lane turn around at the
dead end. Mr. Sheedy replied the design feature is specific to NYS Fire Code and must be implemented for fire
truck turn around.

Code Enforcement Officer Jeffrey Schieber referred to the parking. The zoning code states if you place parking
in the front of the building, the requirement is to increase the building setback. The applicant has well exceeded
this. Parking in front would be at the discretion of the Planning Board. Mr. Hopkins stated the added spaces
were not required by code but based on input from the Planning Board. Mr. Schieber referred to the town code
stating no off-street parking shall be permitted in a required front yard except reserved parking spaces may be



WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

SPR2021-01 (continued)

located in such yards as long as they are no closer than 20’ to the front property line. They spaces may have
to shift inward a few feet to comply.

Chairman Rathmann questioned if additional trees will be removed. Mr. Sheedy replied most trees will be
removed; an extensive tree planting plan is being proposed. Chairman Rathmann stated a tree planting plan
must be provided. Mr. Hopkins stated Earth Dimensions had conducted an inventory of all previous and existing
trees on the site.

Chairman Rathmann stated in December 2019, the site plan showed 117 trees to be planted to accommodate
the requirements to the neighbors. Now the plan shows 113 trees, and the court requirement states 70 trees
are to be added to the site. Mr. Hopkins stated the applicant is following the court order in terms of trees. The
total trees are 113 and if some need to be added back they may be.

Chairman Rathmann stated his understanding that the number of trees should be 113 to satisfy the Planning
Board requirement; on top of that the court has ordered 70 additional trees. Town Attorney Tina Hawthorne
stated the court agreement does not require an “on top of”; it is additional. Ms. Hawthorne stated she is not
disputing the number of trees but clarifying the “in addition to”; the agreement does not use that language. Mr.
Hopkins stated the original plan called for 117 trees and 4 will be added back.

Chairman Rathmann referred to areas that have all Norway Spruce screening; the Environmental Commission
would like a mix of trees. Groups of three of different types would allow protection in case of disease. The first
phase showed trees along the back building. Mr. Hopkins stated the area shows landscaping along with a 6
fence.

Mr. Schieber stated a tree survey was completed by the owner when the trees were removed. The engineer
could take the plan and resubmit to Code Enforcement indicating which trees were coming down. Mr. Hopkins
replied they will resubmit a plan.

Mr. Nalewajek questioned the dumpsters on site. Mr. Hopkins replied dumpsters are unsightly and the request
can be made for more frequent pickup. Code Enforcement officer Schieber concurred with Mr. Hopkins.

Mr. Nalewajek questioned the snow removal/storage. Mr. Sheedy replied snow will be stored on the green space.
Motion by Clifford, seconded by Nalewajek, to close the public hearing.
Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

Motion by Bebak, seconded by Sailer, to grant site plan approval for property located at 945 Center Road for
construction of three (3) multi-family townhouse buildings and associated site work with the following conditions:
1) compliance with the fire department letter/requests; 2) compliance with the Town Engineer letter/requests;
3) adding 4 additional trees for a total of 117 trees; 4) resubmitting the original tree plan to ensure proper trees
are replaced and show additional trees to be removed; 5) comply with 20" setback and parking spaces near
Center Road; 6) comply with the diversity of the evergreen trees along the property line.



WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

SPR2021-01 (continued)

On the question, Chairman Rathmann questioned if the county’s conditions can be imposed. Mr. Sheedy stated
the county’s condition is part of Clark, Patterson and Lee’s letter. Ms. Bebak stated she would add the
requirement.

On the question, Mr. Clifford stated the conditional list is too long; there have been problems in the past when
this has been done.

On the question, Chairman Rathmann stated conditional requirements become burdemsome on the Code
Enforcement Office and he would like to have documents resubmitted with the appropraite changes.

Motion by McCabe, seconded by Clifford, to table the site plan approval for property located at 965 Center Road
for construction of three (3) multi-family townhouse buildings and associated site work until the March meeting
to allow the petitioner to address the issues mentioned for review.

Ayes: (4) Rathmann Noes: (3) Bebak Motion Carried
Clifford Frick
McCabe Sailer
Nalewajek

SPR2021-02

A request from Dr. Gregory Phillies for site plan approval for property located at 3045 and 3027 Seneca Street
for construction of five (5) warehouse type buildings approximately 45,000-sf and associated site work.

Motion by Frick, seconded by McCabe, to open the public hearing.
Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

Mike Metzger with Metzger Civil Engineering stated the property is 7.2 acres in size and zoned M-1. Preexisting
structures are on the property, including a house and two commercial buildings. The proposal is for an addition
to join the buildings and add five buildings to lease out. The existing site is now served by existing sanitary
sewer and water; the proposal is to put in new sanitary sewer service for the new builds and extend to the back
of the property as well as a new fire line, with private hydrant and domestic water line. Also being added to the
site is a storm water management system that includes catch basins to carry the water to the back of the

property.

The plan itself does meet the zoning requirements. A flood plain development permit would need to be applied
for as the fourth plain extends into a portion of the proposed development. The development would be entirely
outside of the limits of the flood land. A special use permit would need to be applied for; one of the smaller
structures would be used as an automotive business. There is an existing single-family home that will remain
as a rental property.



WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

SPR2021-02 (continued)

The applicant understands this is still during the 30-day comment period for SEQRA. The NYS Office of Parks &
Historic Preservation have indicated the site is in an archeologically sensitive area. The applicant is in the process
of hiring an archeologist to conduct an Archaeological Study.

Code Enforcement Officer Jeffrey Schieber stated he has fielded numerous calls regarding residents not being
notified of the project. The property is zoned manufacturing, the zoning code permits these types of buildings
with this specific use. The town does not notify residents of projects unless there is a change in zoning, or a
special use permit required for the service of alcohol, any automotive use, or apartment buildings. Generally,
those are the things that affect the character of a neighborhood. In this instance, the project is properly zoned,
and has the right to do the project. Residents were not notified because this is properly zoned to have such
operations.

Mr. Frick questioned if the embankment was removed or left in place. Mr. Metzger stated the embankment has
not been removed and is part of the reason for applying for the Flood Plain Development Permit; this will show
what was done, the proposal, and show there will be no adverse impact on the flood plain.

Mr. Frick questioned the area of the new detention pond. Mr. Metzger stated the detention pond will be in an
existing lower area of the property.

Mr. Frick noticed the excavation is 7’ below the existing grade for the detention pond. The pond will be inundated
under a 100-year flood. Almost all the buildings are out of the flood plain. The concern was to make sure the
new building was not going on an uncontrolled fill.

Mr. Frick commented on the cell tower on the property and questioned whose property this is on. Mr. Metzger
stated this is on a lease. Mr. Frick expressed concerns over accessing the cell tower. Mr. Metzger replied the
access will remain the same with access from the east.

Mr. Frick referred to the nursing facility adjacent to the parcel and questioned if a fence will be installed along
the area used for automotive use. Mr. Metzger stated he believes there is fencing there now and behind the
fence is nursing home parking.

Mr. Schieber stated the town was provided communication from the attorney representing the cell tower. They
understood the meeting tonight was preliminary and will be reviewing the project. Mr. Metzger stated he
welcomes their input.

Mr. Schieber stated the site plan review addresses water retention, utilities, design. If the intent is to proceed
with automotive use, they will be before this board again to seek a special use permit. Then the details such as
shielding, number of cars, etc., will be scrutinized.

Ms. Bebak stated this was the first the Planning Board heard of automotive use and questioned if this is the
plan. Mr. Metzger replied this is the plan. Ms. Bebak suggested moving the car lot away from the rental house.
Mr. Metzger stated a brand-new stockade fence is planned between the car lot and the home. Ms. Bebak replied
that helps with her concerns.



WEST SENECA COMMUNITY ROOM WEST SENECA PLANNING BOARD
1300 Union Road Minutes #2021-02
West Seneca, NY 14224 February 11, 2021

SPR2021-02 (continued)

Mr. McCabe stated this was zoned M-1 with an M-1 use. If a special use permit is requested under M-1 it would
require notification of the public.

Chairman Rathmann questioned if the storm water system can connect from car lot into the adjoining site. Mr.
Metzger replied because they are on common ownership it could connect.

Chairman Rathmann requested the flood plain imposed on the general grading and drainage plan.

Chairman Rathmann questioned the wetlands and soils on the site. Mr. Metzger replied the soils in the back are
non-hydric soils and offered to provide a soils map to the Code Enforcement Office.

Chairman Rathmann asked if trees will be removed. Mr. Metzger stated the buildings will be before the tree
line.

Chairman Rathmann referred to the parking. Mr. Schieber stated it is very close to meeting the requirements.

Mr. Frick questioned if there was a plan to run additional utilities to what may become the car sales area. Mr.
Metzger stated they will need to work with the Code Enforcement Office on requirements.

Motion by Clifford, seconded by Bebak, to close the public hearing.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

Motion by Clifford, seconded by, Bebak, to table the site plan approval for property located at 3045 and 3027
Seneca Street for construction of five (5) warehouse type buildings approximately 45,000-sf and associated site

work until the March meeting.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

ADJOURNMENT
Motion by Bebak, seconded by Clifford, to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 P.M.

Ayes: All Noes: None Motion Carried

AMY M. KOBLER
TOWN CLERK/PLANNING BOARD SECRETARY



